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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a Trustees' report and a directors’ report (incorporating a strategic report) under company
law.

The multi academy Trust operates one primary school and one secondary school serving catchment areas
in Brent which are:

e Claremont High School for pupils aged 11 to 19 with a pupil capacity of 1,650 and a roll of 1,609 in
the school census on 6™ October 2022.

e Sudbury Primary School for pupils aged 3 to 11 with a pupil capacity of 930 and a roll of 913 in the
school census on 6" October 2022.

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution

The academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital (registration number 07557868)

and is also an exempt charity. As an exempt charity, it is not required to be registered with the Charity

Commission and instead is regulated by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) on behalf of the -
Department of Education. Chrysalis Education Trading Limited (Number 097813800) is a separate trading

subsidiary and is wholly owned by the academy Trust.

The charitable company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of
the academy Trust. The Trustees of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust are also directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the period are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details on page 1. '

Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they
ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the multi academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on multi
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £1 million on any one claim.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The number of Trustees shall not be less than 3 and a maximum of 8 Trustees can be appointed by ordinary
resolution.

In the year there were 8 Trustees of which 1 Trustee served on the Local Governing Body of Claremont High
School.

The Trust uses the website ‘Inspiring Governance’ which provides free recruitment resources to small multi
academy Trusts, like Chrysalis MAT, looking to strengthen their Board of Trustees. The website is used to
connect skilled volunteers who are interested in serving as Trustees at Chrysalis MAT. Interested candidates
are shortlisted and interviewed by the Executive Headteacher, the Chair of Trustees and other key
management personnel. Those identified as having the necessary skillset from the interview process are
‘then invited to attend Trustees meetings on a trial basis. If after this trial, the candidate(s) express the wish
to be appointed, all Trustees vote on whether or not to appoint.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

¢ On appointment or election, each new Trustee is issued with a Handbook giving detailed information
relevant to being a Trustee at Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust;

e A meeting with the Chair of Trustees and Executive Headteacher is held and the structure and workings
of the academy Trust are explained including;

e An explanation of all current issues being dealt with by the academy Trust;

¢ An explanation of the roles and responsibilities of senior leaders within the academy Trust.
Trustees are also;

e Taken on a tour of each academy in the academy Trust;

e Introduced to key personnel within the academy Trust;

e Trustees are made aware of what training courses are available and are encouraged to attend courses
to enhance their contribution to their role as a Trustee of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust.

Organisational structure

The Trustees

“The Trustees are responsible for exercising oversight of the governance and management of the academy

Trust. In exercising their responsibilities, Trustees consider the advice given by the Executive Headteacher,
other executive officers and the Chairs of the Local Governing Bodies as appropriate. The Trustees are
responsible for setting general policy, adopting a 3-year plan and an annual budget, monitoring the academy
Trust by the use of resuits and budget and making major decisions about the direction of the academy Trust,
capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The Executive Headteacher

The Executive Headteacher is responsible for providing professional advice to the Trustees and all other
relevant committees (including the Local Governing Bodies) regarding all matters of professional interest and
concern that contribute to the successful development and operation of the academy Trust and its
academies.

Each Academy Headteacher

The Headteacher of Claremont High School is the Executive Headteacher and Sudbury Primary School has
its own Headteacher. Both the Headteachers of each academy are responsible for the direction and operation
of their academy, while also retaining a substantial degree of autonomy and flexibility in carrying out their
delegated responsibilities. Each academy Headteacher is responsible to the Local Governing Body on all
matters of professional interest and concern that contribute to the successful development and operation of
their academy.

Chief Financial Officer
The Chief Financial officer takes the lead in establishing a strong framework for implementing and
maintaining good financial management across the Trust.

Accounting Officer
The Executive Headteacher is the Accounting Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Trustees are not remunerated, the Executive Headteacher, Headteacher of Sudbury Primary School and the
Chief Financial Officer’s salary are determined by the Trustees. Other senior management of the academy
Trust including Deputy Headteachers and Assistant Headteachers are determined by the Executive
Headteacher and the Headteachers of each academy. All decisions regarding the remuneration of key
management personnel and senior management are ratified by the Pay Committee.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Trade union facility time

Information in accordance with Schedule 2 of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements)
Regulations 2018 is as follows:

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union | Full-time equivalent number
officials during the relevant period
2 1.8

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0%
1% - 50% : : -2
51% - 99%
100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time £150
Total pay bill £13,540,913
Facility time as percentage of total pay bill 0%

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a 10%
percentage of total paid facility time hours °

Related pa;'ties and other Connecfed Charities and Organisations

Chrysalis Muiti Academy Trust has no connected party transactions. All Trustees, Local Governing Body
members, key management personnel and senior management complete a ‘Register of Interest’ form to
enable the academy Trust to identify where any related parties may arise. In the event that a related party
was identified, all decisions would still be based on the tender process but with an understanding of any
interests. Any identified related parties would not participate in the decision-making process.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)
The Trust has met the requirements as follows:

e Regular staff briefings by the Executive Headteacher and each academy’s Headteacher were and
still undertaken.

e Further updates are provided in each academy’s weekly staff bulletin and distributed to each

. member of the staff via email.

e Consultation via JCC across the Trust has taken place in relation to any amendment of policies or
any new policies that have been rolled out.

e Al staff are informed via email of any changes made to palicies or if there is a new policy in place.

¢ The Executive Headteacher, HR and the academy's Headteacher operated and still operates an
open door policy to all staff to raise any concerns across the Trust.

¢ Reminding and providing supporting information on the Trust's Employee Assistance Programme
and Counselling services.

e The Executive Headteacher and academy’s Headteacher meets with senior leadership team/HoD
to discuss any employee concerns.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

The academy Trust ensures that value for money is prioritised and at the centre of all engagements with
suppliers, customers and other business relationships. The academy Trust strives to achieve good value in
a manner which treats all suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the academy Trust
fairly and equally and above all else via a system of process and procedures that is transparent so that
decisions can be held to account at any time.

Examples included:-

e The academy Trust's finance department ensures that suppliers are paid on time and in accordance with
supplier payment terms and finance procedures;

e The Executive Headteacher and Chief Financial Officer ensure that all goods and services are procured
in accordance with finance procedures and where the value of a purchase is such, that a full tendering
process is required, that the tender is conducted in a way that is transparent, fair and anyone with a
business interest is excluded from the tender.

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The strategic goal of Chrysalis Multi Academy is to provide a broad and balanced curriculum to all pupils in
accordance with the funding agreement between the multi academy Trust and the Department for Education.
Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust (CMAT) was founded in 2017. It is a MAT for local schools and we have
exceptionally high ambitions for anyone and everyone that we work with.

Our mission statement is:
‘A family of schools working together in partnership to provide centres of educational excellence for all.’

Chrysalis was borne out of moral purpose and the desire of two academies to come together to forge a bond
of mutual respect that underpins all that we do. That moral purpose is enshrined in the belief that together
we can change the world for our young people. We are incredibly proud of who we are and what we stand
for. We believe that innovation, creativity and autonomy are an integral part of ensunng that all of our pupils
are successful.

We have forged a set of shared values and ways of operating that are the foundations of what we stand for
in our commitment to the provision of the highest quality of education for all. We expect learners of CMAT to
be confident so that they can compete with their local, national and international peers in all aspects of their
educational experience and in the world of work. Our core values are: Excellence, Responsibility, Respect,
Aspiration and Perseverance.

Pupils and staff at CMAT benefit from our shared determination to be an outstanding provider in a rich and
complex educational environment with exceptional facilities and a broad and balanced curriculum. This
includes high quality leadership that is committed to securing the best possible teachers and support staff
alongside a high-quality staff training programme.

At CMAT we believe that it is essential to work in partnership with other schools, academies and
organisations both locally and nationally. We have embraced the role of being a Challenge Partner Hub
School and both schools are accredited with the 'Flagship' Inclusion Quality Mark.

Six key principles of the CMAT:

Equity: Total commitment to working together to improve the life chances of all learners through high
expectations of the performance for all

Learning: High quality teaching and learning for all key stages

Leadership: Rigorous leadership that has an impact at all levels

Curriculum: Positive growth mindset so that we are consistently developing, achieving strength through
challenge and creating opportunities for all

Professional Development: High quality training and professional development for staff and governors
Communication: Positive professional relationships between all staff and all stakeholders
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

High quality education is the heart of everything we do at CMAT. This is because we know that an
outstanding education unlocks the potential of all learners and provides them with a wealth of opportunities
regardless of their backgrounds or their individual starting points. We believe that every young person,
regardless of where they came from or their ability or personal needs is deserving of a world class education
experience at CMAT. By ensuring that every young person is given this opportunity we can enable them to
achieve their full potential and to prepare them to be successful in adult life and in an ever-changing world.
Quality education is the hallmark of a forward thinking and highly cohesive society.

At CMAT we ensure that all of our learners know and understand the values that they bring to their success
and the added value that is brought by others. In this way we strive to create a learning community that is
built upon the foundations of fairness, cohesiveness, challenge and resilience, productivity and innovation.

We expect learners of CMAT to be confident to compete with their local, national and international peers.

Underpinning our vision and mission statement are our core values which have been defined by all of our
staff and governors and which capture the values of all of our schools: Excellence, Responsibility, Respect,
Aspiration and Perseverance. These expectations underpin everythlng we do and we are very excited to
work with our partners who share this ethos.

CMAT Values:
e Excellence: appointing the best staff who are innovative, skilled and whose enthusiasm for facing
the challenges of education in the 21st century is unparalleled and to continue to provide
opportunities for continuous professional development for all our staff

s Responsibility: provide a safe and secure environment where individual learners thrive as
confident, independent citizens who are accountable and reflective about their actions and decisions

e Respect: fostering genuine community cohesion and a set of traditional values based on discipline
and mutual respect and compassion where we value the unique contributions of parents and carers
and the wider community

e Aspiration: providing a broad, balanced and challenging curriculum through innovative and quality
teaching, strengthened by our exciting and all inclusive approach enabling us to be at the forefront
of educational development

e Perseverance: providing challenging and rigorous standards of academic achievement, enabling
pupils to make choices for future learning based on a range of academic and applied skills

Objectives, strategies and activities
The main objectives for the year are:

e Ensure we are '‘Ofsted’ ready given that both schools are due an inspection this academic year

¢ Continue the already established good practice of identifying and addressing in-school variations
across the Trust in order to continually narrow gaps in pupil progress and attainment

e Further develop the central team across the Trust ensure greater commonalities between the
schools and consistency in processes.

¢ Develop an Expansion Plan and increase the size of the Trust

e Rollout new accounting software and HR software

e Ensure a robust recruitment strategy to retain and attract the best quality candidates in light of the
current climate

e Continue to focus on mental well-being of pupils and staff, as a result of the impact of the pandemic

The strategies adopted for achieving these objectives are:

e CFO and Head of HR continue to work together to ensure Trust processes are centralised and
cohesive. They will lead respectively on the rollout of the software packages. The Executive
Leadership Team will meet regularly to explore further areas for synergy. Executive Headteacher
and Chair of Trustees will begin exploring the growth of the Trust with the RSC. Attend local meetings
in relation to MAT growth
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

» Executive Headteacher is a Senior Partner for Challenge Partners and Claremont is the Hub school
for NW London. This work, alongside being part of the Network of excellence and the Quality
Assurance Reviews, will support schools in the Trust in their Ofsted journey. The Hub delivers a
portfolio of OLEV!I training to support staff development across the Trust. Both schools engage
regularly with their School Improvement Partners (SIP) to work to driving school improvement.

¢ Both schools have robust ‘data drops’ that is scrutinised at a forensic level at schools’ Standards
Boards — this then informs interventions to narrow gaps. Data is analysed with various demographics
in mind and there is a high priority on narrowing the DA and non-DA gap.

e Effective use of Place2Be, Creative Awakenings, school counsellors, Brent MHST, Mental Health
18! aid training and AWARE project.

« Continue to ensure high quality teaching and learning across the Trust via scrutiny, learning walks
and training.

Significant activities linked to the Trust's charitable activities, and how they further its aims, have been:
¢ Reduction in pricing for lettings of our facilities for the local community — this helps to build good
-relationships with the local community, ensuring they feel connected to the schools and more likely -
to choose the schools for their own children. Many of the ‘lets’ support our own pupils outside of
school as they attend the clubs (e.g. karate) that is run in the evenings/weekend.

e Both schools have a long history of raising money for wide variety of charities, e.g., non-uniform
days, cake sales, etc. — this supports our pupils’ own SMSC development and raising awareness of
the various work these charities do.

e Both schools complete toy collections for under-privileged children, focd banks for local families and
send toiletries boxes to refugee camps — again this supports our own pupils’ SMSC development
and raises awareness of current affairs.

e Claremont runs the Chrysalis Challenge Partners Hub — this involves lots of outward facing work
and supporting other London schools in their school improvement journeys. We offer a portfolio of
OLEVI accredited programmes, including the Outstanding Teacher Programme, Outstanding
Student Mentoring, Outstanding TA Programme and the Creative Teacher programme — all free of
charge to Hub schools. One of Claremont’s History teachers delivers national training on
decolonisation of the curriculum.

e« Both schools regularly host visits for Norwegian teachers and leaders looking to learn about the
British education system. This helps us to reflect on our offer and processes and also learn about
systems in place in another European country.

e The Trust delivers the NPQSL on behalf of North West London Teaching School Hub to 45+ local
delegates — this provides additional CPD opportunities for senior leaders.

e The Trust delivers the CAFAI programme and a Beginners English project on behalf of Brent (local
authority). This supports the Trust's aims in ensuring all pupils fulfil their full potential and supports
them in reaching the next stage of their education.

e Claremont 6" formers run an annual senior citizens Christmas party — this enhances the festive
season for local lonely senior citizens and helps our pupils to develop their awareness of the issues
their local community face.

e Claremont hosts a regular IT programme for the local community to come on site and receive tuition
in IT skills free of charge. This has bene running for a number of years and a considerable number
of local people have passed through various IT qualifications as a result. This in turn improves our
relationship with the local community and supports their development.

Public benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit.

Chrysalis Multi Academy is an equal opportunity employer, and strives to give full and fair consideration to

all applicants for employment, training and promotions, irrespective of disability, gender, race, colour or
sexual orientation.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report
Achievements and Performance

Claremont High School:

At Key Stage 4 Key Performance measures were very good. The school’s overall Progress 8 measure was
0.77 which placed the school in the top 250 schools nationally for progress. Attainment scores were also
encouraging with Average Attainment 8 being 5.8, which is higher than the 2019 value of 5.7 (the last time
exams were held). 82% of pupils achieved grade 4 or above in English and maths and 72% of pupils were
entered for the Ebacc — both values being significantly higher than national averages.

Table One: Headline attainment overview

Results 2019 CAGs 2021 Results 2022
Avg Attainment 8 score per student 5.7 59 58
Avg Attainment 8 score per student 5.5 57 5.6
in Maths Element
Avg Attainment 8 score per student 6.2 6.2 ' 6.2
in English Element
Avg Attainment 8 score per student 5.8 6.1 5.8
in EBacc Element
Avg Attainment 8 score per student 5.5 6 55
in Open Element
Grade 5 or above in English and 63.9% 67.70% 67.2%
Maths
Grade 4 or above (Level 2) in 81.2% 88% 82.4%
English and Maths )
English Baccalaureate - Grade 5 or 33.7% 42.5% 42.4%
above '
English Baccalaureate - Percentage 76.1% 65.8% 72.1%
of pupils entering
Grade 5 or above in EBacc English 86.7% 85% 81.3%
Grade 5 or above in EBacc Maths 65.1 " 71.4% 69.8%
English Baccalaureate - 2+ Grade 5 67.5% 75.2% 67.2%
or above in EBacc Science
English Baccalaureate - 1+ Grade 5 66.3% 72.6% 721%
or above in EBacc Humanities
English Baccalaureate - 1+ Grade 5 41.6% 44.4% 50.4%
or above in EBacc Languages .
5+ Grade 5 or above GCSE (or 61.2% 66.2% 64.1%
equiv.) inc. En & Ma

Table 2 highlights the number and percentage of pupils passing their GCSEs at different grades. It was
pleasing to see a high percentage of pupils passing at the top grades of 6+.
Table 2: Pass rates

Grade Number %

1 49 2.20
2 101 4.54
3 188 8.46
4 239 10.75
5 381 17.14
6 398 17.90
7 314 14.13
8 268 12.06
9 255 11.47
U 30 1.35
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Progress 8 scores

The Progress 8 figures highlight a number of areas of improvement and some very good progress scores.
These include overall P8, maths, English and Ebacc values. Note only students with KS2 SAT scores are
included in Progress 8 measures.

Table 3: Headline progress overview scores

Progress measure P8 Value
Overall P8 +0.8
Maths P8 +0.8
English P8 +0.9
Ebacc P8 +1.0
Open P8 +0.5

For our Year 13 cohort, the school recorded our best ever set of results. Key highlights included an
average point score of over 36, which equates to an average grade of B-. Pass rates were the schools best
ever with 29% of entries attaining an A*/A and over 61% achieving A*-B. For our vocational students,
attainment here was very high, with the average point score of 34.52, equating to an average grade of
Distinction -.

Table 4: 2022 Results v 2019 & 2021

2019 2021 2022
Academic Cohort APS 33.79 37.455 36.75
Avg Grade C+ B- B-
A level APS 33.17 38.31 36.69
A Level Average Grade C+ B- B-
App- Gen. APS 7| 33.62 33.91 | 34.52
App. Gen Average Grade Dist- Dist- Dist

Table 5: Pass Rates 2022 v 2019&2021

A Level Pass| 2019 2021 2022
Rates %
A*-A 18.9 35.5 29
A*-B 46.2 60.6 61.1
A*-C 74.7 82.6 81
A*-D 89.7 94 93
A*-E 98 99 96.3
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trus

t

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Sudbury Primary School:

With the return of all statutory assessments, we were incredibly proud of the outcomes achieved across the
school in the summer term. Sudbury Primary School remains above Brent and National comparators in
almost all areas. Our outcomes in writing, in particular those at Greater Depth, continue to be a priority.

Pupils achieving - Puplls achieving A"v.eragev Point
@mym Expected in.all 17 - GLD Score
m@ﬁﬁb ELGs - ‘ o
202208 2022 2022
Sudbury Primary School 1% 74% 319
' Brent N/A 64% 30.5
NCER National N/A 65% 31
L . , - Pupils meeting the standard by | Pupils meeting the standard by
, mm@m the end of Year 1 ‘ the end of Year 2-
Sudbury Primary School 80% _ 83%
Brent 77% N/A
NCER National 76% N/A
Pupils meeting the ~ Puplls achieving Greater
Key, ASATS) Expected standard . Depth
Reading - Sudbury Primary School 76% 19%
Reading - Brent 67% 18%
Reading — NCER National 67% 18%
Writing - Sudbury Primary School 61% 11%.
Writing - Brent 58% 9%
Writing — NCER National 58% 8%
Maths - Sudbury Primary School 72% 18%
Maths - Brent 68% 19%
Maths — NCER Natlonal 68% 15%
57% 10%
54% 7%
| Combined — NCER Natonal 54% 6%
Science - Sudbury Primary School 87%
Science- Brent 73%
Science- NCER National 77%
Cheffeet A Pupils scoring 20+ Pupils scoring 100%
fiablesiChecks , v 2
i tiplication 5037 6570
Sudbury Primary School 79% 45%.
Brent N/A N/A
National N/A N/A
: ‘Pupils meeting the Pupils ach:evmg Greater
KeyIStageY2 LS ATLS Expected standard Depth ’
202208
Reading - Sudbury Primary School 7% L 29%
Reading - Brent 75% 28%
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Reading - National ) X 74% ; 28%
Writing - Sudbury Primary School ‘ 75% ' 5%
Writing- Reading - Brent 66% 12%
Writing - National 70% 13%
Maths - Sudbury Primary School ‘ 80% 30%
Maths - Brent 76% 26%
Maths - National 71% 22%
AR 85% 55%
‘GPaS': L 76% 35%
“GPasY National »i™ v i ey 72% 28%
T LI - 55% m
- 58% 7%
:.Com eﬁ ational N ‘ 59% _ 7%
Science - Sudbury Primary School _ 87%
Science - Brent N/A
Science - National 79%

Performance Measures

The government will not publish KS2 school level data for the 2021 to 2022 academic year. They have
archived data from the 2018 to 2019 academic year because they recognise that the data from that year may
no longer reflect current performance.

Key Performance Indicators

e Claremont High School - Outstanding

e  Sudbury Primary School - Good

* Direct costs as a percentage of total costs were 69.3 % (2021 : 72.1 %)

e Support costs as a percentage of total costs were 30.7 % (2021 : 27.9 %)

e Total payroll costs as a percentage of recurring income were 77.3 % (2021 : 81.7 %)

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the multi
academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details
regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
Promoting the success of the company

Trustees promoted the success of the academy Trust throughout the 2021-22 year by:

e Considering the interests of employees. Trustees requested that the Executive Headteacher to
ensure that both schools within the Trust create a staff well-being Charter. Each school audited their
provisions for staff well-being and in conjunction with staff created a well-being charter. As part of
the commitment to well-being, Trustees requested that a Lead Governor responsible for staff well-

being was created on each school's LGB. The Lead Governors meet regularly with the school
representative for well-being to create support and challenge for this element of schoal life.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

e In addition, the 2021-22 year saw the first ever Trust-wide inset day held a Claremont High School
in November 2021. The day was dedicated to the well-being of staff and was an opportunity for the
staff from each school to mix together and share best practice. The well-being element was
outsourced to an external company who led a wide variety of workshops on stress and nutrition,
well-being and mindfulness, smoothies bikes, yoga, art classes and much more.

e The 2021-22 year aiso saw a larger than normal turnover of staff. The two years previously had
seen very little staff turnover due to pandemic related issues. Trustees supported the senior
leadership teams of each school to ensure that high-quality teaching and non-teaching staff were
appointed. This ensures that pupils receive high-quality first teaching and that Teaching and
Learning remains outstanding across the Trust.

e Trustees continued with both schools’ participation in the Challenge Partners Network of
Excellence. There is a financial commitment to being part of the programme and each school
achieving LEADING (the highest grading) for their Quality Assurance Reviews. This further
demonstrates the Trustees commitment to reducing education inequality and improving the life
chances of all pupils.

e Trustees oversaw the growth of the Challenge Partners Hub — Chrysalis. The hub has seen
extraordinary growth and is now the third largest hub nationally. The hub has grown from 6 schools
to 19 for September 2022. From September 2022 the Hub will be supporting 15,500+ pupils in Brent
and Harrow. Within the hub there are trained facilitators to deliver OLEVI accredited qualifications,
including OTP (Outstanding Teacher Programme), OTAP (Outstanding TA Programme) and OSM
(Outstanding Student Mentoring Programme) - there are plans to add the CTP (Creative Teacher
Programme) to this impressive portfolio.

e Trustees continued to ensure that the SLAs Claremont High School deliver on behalf of Brent — the
CAFAI programme and Greenway Beginners Project were implemented effectively.

e Trustees encourage and supported the Executive Headteacher and Headteacher of SPS to
complete their ILM (Institute of Leadership and Management) Level 7 coaching qualifications — this
is to ensure a coaching ethos can be developed across the Trust for the future.

e Trustees ensured that each school were re-accredited for IQM (Inclusion Quahty Mark) flagship
status to demonstrate their excellence towards inclusion.

e The Trust trained 4 senior leaders to deliver the NPQSL qualification on behalf of the local
teaching school hub.

e Trustees provide support and challenge to ensure the excellent outcomes for both schools — both
above national averages for all headlines measures.

e Trustees actively consider the local community by the highly effective use of each school's
facilities for sporting and cultural events. This is in addition to the Christmas party for the local
community’s senior citizens

e Trustees acted with the highest standards of business conduct. Trustees throughout the year
adhered to all statutory policy requirements and declared their business interests in accordance with
the Academies Financial Handbook requirements.

Financial Review

The financial results of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust are detailed in the following pages. It is considered
that the finances are sound and well established. The principal financial management policies adopted are
laid down by the Finance Handbook for Academies published by the ESFA and requirements as laid down
by the Multi Academy’s Financial Handbook.

The principal funding source is grant income from the ESFA. All expenditure of this grant income is planned
to fulfil the objectives and strategies of the Multi Academy Trust.

During the year ended 31 August 2022 total resources expended were £18,476k and the excess of
expenditure over income was £362k which included depreciation of £1,650k.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Reserves Policy

The Trustees continually monitor the reserves of the charitable company. This process encompasses the
nature of income and expenditure streams and the need to match commitments with income and nature of
reserves.

It is the Board of Trustees’' general policy to continue to build reserves which can be used for future
educational purposes.

The multi academy had total funds at 31 August 2022 of £54,808k which included £1,758k restricted funds
not available for general purposes of the multi academy Trust, £3,443k of free reserves defined as
unrestricted funds available for general purposes and £50,204k which can only be realised by the disposal
of tangible fixed assets. ’ '

The balance on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus the balance on unrestricted funds
was a surplus/deficit of £5,201k.

In addition, the deficit on the restricted pension fund of £597k arises from an actuarial deficit on the local
government pension scheme which will be dealt with as advised by the actuary. This will result in a cash
flow effect for the academy Trust in the form of an increase in employers’ pension contributions over a period
of years.

The academy trust has an established reserves policy which is reviewed by the Trust annually. This review
encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments
and the nature of reserves. The Trustees have determined that total of unrestricted reserves of a minimum
of one month’s payroll (approximately £1M) should be held by the academy trust at any one time. The aims
are (1) to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants, (2) to
provide contingency funding for unexpected emergencies, -(3) to remain appropriately funded over the
medium term, (4) to provide funding for future estate and planned capital investment.

Investment Policy

* The Trustees invest only in low-risk bank deposit accounts with the flexibility to invest across a range of
account terms in order to balance liquidity and return.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The academy Trust’'s principle risks are uncertainty regarding the level of funding from the ESFA going
forward as well as uncertainties regarding the sustainability of paying future cost of living increases to staff.
In addition, the academy Trust is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which results
in the recognition of a significant deficit on the academy balance sheet.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks, to which the academy Trust is exposed, in particular those
relating specifically to teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the academy Trust and
its finances. The Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the academy Trust
faces, especially in the operational areas (e.g., safeguarding) and in relation to the control of finance. A
separate comprehensive risk assessment is in place in relation to Covid-19. Where significant financial risks
remain the academy Trust has ensured that adequate risk protection arrangements (e.g., RPA and Zurich
insurance cover).

The academy Trust has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail
in the Governance Statement. The academy Trust has fully implemented the requirements of the Safer
Recruitment procedures and all key staff have received training in this area. In addition, all staff have received
training on Child Protection, Prevent Strategy, Safer Working Practices, Keeping Children Safe in Education
and GDPR.

Fundraising

The academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the period was
monitored by the Trustees. :

Page 13



Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

UK energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions

Annual energy usage and associated annual greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions are reported pursuant to

the Companies (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report)

Regulations 2018 (“the 2018 Regulations”) that came into force 1 April 2019.
Organisational boundary

In accordance with the 2018 Regulations, the energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions are for
those assets owned or operated within the UK only as defined by the operational control boundary. This
includes both schools controlled during the reporting period and minibuses.

Reporting period

The annual reporting period is 1 September to 31 August each year and the energy and carbon emissions
are aligned to this period.

Quantification and reporting methodology

The 2019 UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (revised edition) were followed. The 2022 UK Government GHG Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting were used in emission calculations. The report has been reviewed independently by
Briar Consulting Engineers Limited.

The electricity and gas consumption were compiled from invoice records or data extracts. Where invoices
did not cover the reporting year, estimation techniques, such as the pro-rata or the direct comparison method,
were applied. Odometer mileage readings were used to calculate emissions associated with minibuses. The
Trust reported that no mileage claims were submitted for business travel in employee-owned cars. On site
renewable solar photovoltaic electricity is measured using FIT Statements. Exported energy is not measured
but deemed to be 50%. As the statements did not cover the full reporting year, the data was extrapolated to
account for the seasonality of Solar PV generation. Generally gross calorific values were used except for
grey fleet mileage energy calculations as per Government GHG Conversion Factors.

The associated emissions are divided into mandatory and voluntary emissions according to the 2018
Regulations, then further divided into the direct combustion of fuels and the operation of facilities (scope 1),
indirect emissions from purchased electricity (scope 2) and further indirect emissions that occur as a
consequence of Trust activities but occur from sources not owned or controlled by the organisation (scope
3).

Breakdown of energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh):
Energy type ' 2020/21 2021/22

Mandatory requirements:

Gas 1,521,381 1,350,504
Purchased electricity from the grid 1,412,239 1,351,844
Transport fuel 2,164 26,124
Total energy (mandatory) 2,935,784 2,728,473

Voluntary requirements:

Consumed electricity from on-site renewable sources 5,528 5,706

Total energy (voluntary) 5,528 5,706
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Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Total energy (mandatory & voluntary) : 2,941,312 2,734,178

Breakdown of emissions associated with the reported energy use (tCO.e):
Emission source : 2020/21 2021/22

Mandatory requirements:

Scope 1
Natural gas 278.7 246.5
Company owned vehicles (minibuses) : ' 0.5 v 6.5
Scope 2
Purchased electricity (location-based) _ 299.9 261.4
Scope 3
Category 6: Business travel (grey fleet) 0.0 0.0
Total gross emissions (mandatory) 579.1 514.5

Intensity ratios (mandatory emissions only)

Tonnes of COze per pupil 0.266 0.212

Tonnes of COze per square meter floor area 0.016 0.014

Voluntary requirements:

Scope 1

Consumed electricity from on-site renewable sources ! 00 0.0
Total gross emissions (voluntary) 0.0 0.0
Total gross emissions (mandatory & voluntary) 579.1 514.5

Intensity ratio

Two intensity ratios are reported showing emissions (tCOze) per pupil and per square meter floor area.
Emissions per pupil is the recommended ratio for the sector for consistency and comparability and pupil .
numbers are based on the Autumn 2021 Census. Emissions per square meter floor area is reported to reflect
the energy efficiency of the buildings, which are the source of the majority of emissions.

Energy efficiency action during current financial year

No energy efficiency actions have been undertaken this year.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Plans for Future Periods

For Claremont to remain as Ofsted Outstanding and Sudbury to continue as Good in their next
inspection. Both schools to achieve Leading in their 2023 Challenge Partners Quality Assurance
Reviews.

To ensure we continue to meet out KPIs on an annual basis.

The Trust will roll out its Growth Plan and have the capacity for additional schools to join the Trust.
Claremont will continue to lead the North West London Challenge Partners Hub and hence the Trust
will continue with its outward facing work.

The Trust to rollout the decarbonisation plans as recently recommended.

Highly effective use of Trust reserves to enhance teaching and learning, improve teaching spaces and
school environments as a whole.

Continue to deliver high quality CPD to staff to support their development and drive school improvement.
Trustees are keen to grow the Trust — recent years has seen significant work in the development of an
outstanding central team and delivery of consist processes across both schools. The centralised
functions mean the Trust has the capacity and experience to work with other schools — this has been a
key piece of learning for Trustees. Trustees are keen for the Trust to be a local MAT for local schools.
Chrysalis is currently the largest independent Multi Academy Trust in the local authority (Brent) in terms
of pupil numbers — Trustees are keen to maintain this position. The 2022/23 year will see a top slice in
operation for the first time, as Sudbury Primary is now out of deficit. Trustees have made effective
decisions regarding the allocation of resources to ensure the SPS deficit is now a surplus, whilst stiil
driving school improvement and enhancing the premises. As a result, SPS is now in an excellent
position.

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

* » the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as
the company directors, on 14 December 2022 and signed on the Board's behalf by:

.7
) Mr S.R. Brunswick - Chair of Trustees
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement for the year ended 31 August 2022
Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’'s Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Officer Headteacher, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement between Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any materlal weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Out of a
attended possible

Mr S.R. Brunswick (Chairman)

Ms N Hyde-Boughey (Accounting Officer)
Mr S. Kataria

Mr N.C. Molden

Mr N. Sanghrajka

Mr S. Kennedy (appointed 01.09.21)

Ms T. Patel (appointed 01.09.21)

Mr M. Vadgama (resigned 08.06.22)

NWOAWAWOOD
QOO OD

The Trust managed to recruit two new Trustees from 1% September 2021, Mr S. Kennedy and Ms T. Patel,
with great experience in both education and finance respectively. The board began to operate more
personably during the financial year with the reintroduction of face-to-face meetings and, following the release
of the DfE’s Schools White Paper, has begun to explore the possibilities of growing the Trust.

Conflicts of interest

The Trust keeps an up-to-date and complete register of interests which is shared with management and
finance staff across the Trust in order to prevent any financial conflicts of interest.

Review of governance

The Trustees carry out an annual review of their effectiveness as a board in maintaining strong governance
and in its support of key staff and committees.

The annual review considers the Nolan principles and self-evaluation against the following:

Setting strategy

Providing scrutiny

Administering stewardship

Providing support and guidance to key management personnel including the Executive
Headteacher, Headteacher at Claremont High School and the Chief Financial Officer.

The Trustees were responsible in the year for the general control and management of the
administration of the Trust. The work of the Trustees in the year included:
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Chrysalis Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

e Setting the Trust's vision, ethos and strategy for the next three years ) '

e Setting the level of authority and accountability each Local Governing Body has through the scheme
of delegation

+  Scrutinising the education performance data of all academies within the Trust

e Exploring the possibilities of growing the Trust.

The Trust intends to conduct its next self-evaluation/external review in Spring 2023.

The Finance and Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is
to ensure that the Trust is following the ESFA's financial regulations. No significant issues were dealt with
during the year.

Trustee ‘ Meetings Out of a
attended possible

Mr S. Kataria

Mr N.C. Molden

Mr N. Sanghrajka

Mr S. Kennedy (appointed 01.09.21)
Ms T. Patel (appointed 01.09.22)
Mr M. Vadgama (resigned 08.06.21)

= NNNW-
NWWWwWww

The Audit and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to (i)
monitor the integrity of the financial statements (ii) review internal financial controls and review the Trust's
internal control and risk management systems (iii) make recommendations to Trustees in relation to the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the auditor and (iv) review the auditor’'s independence and objectivity.

Trustee Meetings Out of a
attended possible

Mr S. Kataria

Mr N.C. Molden

Mr N. Sanghrajka

Mr S. Kennedy (appointed 01.09.21)
Ms T. Patel (appointed 01.09.21)
Mr M. Vadgama (resigned 08.06.22)

SNNDNDW-
NWWWwWwWw

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the multi academy Trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, inciuding the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The
Accounting Officer for the Multi Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

e Ensuring a robust tendering process is in place and promoting a ‘best value’ culture whereby three
quotes are obtained on many supplies and services below the threshold. This has helped to provide
excellent value for money on many occasions with the variances in cost between the quotes
demonstrating its worth across both schools.

e Benchmarking and reviewing the staffing structure of both schools to ensure that the Trust is operating
its staffing in an efficient manner.

¢ The Trust looked at its banking arrangements and changed banks in order to save bank charges. It also
focused more on its treasury management in order to obtain a better return on its cash at bank.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Governance statement for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
- The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed
to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Multi Academy Trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and
to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in
Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Multi Academy Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
- managing the Multi Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2021
to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process
is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Muiti Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountabitity. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial
performance’ against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance; .
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

. identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to
appoint an internal auditor. However the Trustees have decided to:

o buy-in an internal audit service from R.M.K Audit Services Limited

His role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Multi Academy
Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. testing of payroll systems

. testing of purchase systems
. testing of control accounts

. testing of bank reconciliations

On a yearly basis, the internal reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees, through the finance and general
purposes committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’
financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the
areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conciusions to help the committee consider actions and
assess year on year progress.

There were no material control issues arising as a result of the internal reviewer’'s work.
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Governance statement for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal reviewer;

. the work of the external auditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process of the school resource
management self-assessment tool;

e the work of the executive managers within the Multi Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Audit, Finance and Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 14 December 2022 and signed on its behalf
by:

=t et

Mr S.R. Brunswick Ms N. Hyde-Boughey
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance
for the period ended 31 August 2022

As accounting officer of Chrysalis Multi Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify the multi academy trust
board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the multi academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the multi academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2021.

I confirm that | and the multi academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the multi academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the multi academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

%W% ........ Ms N Hyde-Boughey — Accounting Officer

14 December 2022
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities
for the period ended 31 August 2022

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021
to 2022;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 14 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

4
=,

Mr S R Brunswick — Chair of Trustees

Page 22



Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

We 'have audited the financial statements of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust (the 'multi academy trust’) for the year
ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the consolidated Statement of Financial Activities (incorporating income and
expenditure account), the group and charitable company Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements :

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and the Parent Charitable Company's affairs as at 31
August 2022, and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for the period then ended

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the multi academy trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

»  Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the multi academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

*  Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Chrysalis Multi
Academy Trust
(continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the trustees annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within
the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves.'lf,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the information given in the trustees’ report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.

Matters on which wc are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Multi Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
*  certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Chrysalis Multi
Academy Trust ' ' ' '

(continued)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement [set out on page 22], the trustees (who are also the

directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the

trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

*  We reviewed the multi academy trust’s control and risk management procedures and planned our work
based on our assessment of those controls and procedures;

*  This review included an assessment of the risk of material misstatement due to errors, fraud and
management override of controls for all material areas in the financial statements;

*  We made enquiries of management and the multi academy trust’s lawyers regarding any actual or potential
litigation and/or claims; : : '

*  Financial statements disclosures were reviewed and checked for compliance with applicabie laws;

* Detailed testing was conducted on balances and transactions including unusual items and those of individual
significance to the financial statements;

*  Data analytics were used in order to identify unusual or significant trends;

*  Communications with management and those charged with governance regarding relevant matters was
undertaken throughout the audit and on completion.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases
the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also
greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment,
forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

charilable company's internal control.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Chrysalis Multi
Academy Trust '

(continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the trustees.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern. {f we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financia!l statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the charitable company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the multi academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the multi academy trust and
the multi academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Clell: ons

David W Farnsworth FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Feltons, Statutory Auditor

8 Sovereign Court

8 Graham Street

Birmingham B1 3JR

14 December 2022
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Chrysalis Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 June 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied
to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 March 2011 and the Academies Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. .

Approach

We conduéted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA . We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagemerit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Multi Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes :
*  Consideration of the applicable legislation and the muiti academy trust’s funding agreement
*  Review and evaluation of the multi academy trust's system of internal controls
*  Examination and assessment of the Accounting Officer’s statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
* Examination, on a test basis, of third party evidence supporting income and expenditure
* Review of exceptional and unusual items
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Chrysalis Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

(}C—&M Sl

David W Farnsworth FCA (Reporting Accountant)
For and on behalf of Feltons, Statutory Auditor ’
8 Sovereign Court

8 Graham Street

Birmingham B1 3JR

14 December 2022
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

" Statement of financial activities for the year ended 31 August 2022

(including income and expenditure account)

Income from :

Donations and capital grants

Charitable activities :

Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations
.Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on :

Raising funds
Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational

operations

Total

Net income/(expenditure) before

transfers

Transfers between funds

Net income/(expenditure) after

transfers

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

All of the Academy’s activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods. .

Notes

7,8

17

17,27

17

Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension .general fixed asset Total Total
funds fund funds funds 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
352 - - 376 728 447
- - 16,551 - 16,551 16,314
831 - - - 831 . 621
4 - - - 4 1
1,187 - 16,551 376 18,114 17,383
660 - 33 - 693 458
183 635 15,315 1,650 17,783 17,910
843 635 15,348 1,650 18,476 18,368
344 . (635) 1,203 (1,274) (362) (985)
- - (334) 334 - -
344 (635) 869 (940) (362) (985)
- 5,348 - . - 5,348 (953)
344 4,713 869 (940) 4,986 (1,938)
3,099 (5,310) 889 51,144 49,822 51,760
3,443 (597) 1,758 50,204 54,808 49,822
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Company number : 7557868
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 August 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 49,607 50,579
Current assets
Stock 1 1
Debtors 15 975 857
Cash at bank and in hand 6,105 5,260
7,081 6,118

Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year 16(a) 1,242 1,545
Net current assets 5,839 4,573
Total assets less current liabilities 55,446 55,152
Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year 16(b) (41) (20)
Net assets excluding pension liability 55,405 55,132
Defined benefit pénsion scheme liability 27 (597) (5,310)
Total net assets ) 54,808 49,822
Funds of the academy trust :
Restricted funds

Fixed asset fund 17 50,204 51,144

Restricted income fund 17 1,758 889

Pension reserve 17 (597) (5,310)
Total restricted funds ) 51,365 46,723
Unrestricted income funds 17 3,443 3,099
Total funds 54,808 49,822

The financial statements on pages 29 to 55 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 14 December
2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

..... 6?‘/ Mr S R Brunswick — Chair of Trustees
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Chrysalis Muiti Academy Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Company number ; 7557868
Academy balance sheet as at 31 August 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets - 13 49,607 50,579
Current assets
Stock 1 1
Debtors 15 976 800
Cash at bank and in hand 6,105 5,209
7,082 6,010

Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year 16(a) 1,242 1,544
Net current assets 5,840 4,466
Total assets less current liabilities 55,447 585,045
Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year 16(b) (41) (20)
Net assets excluding pension liability 55,406 55,025
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 27 (597) (5,310)
Total net assets 54,809 49,715
Funds of the academy trust :
Restricted funds

Fixed asset fund 17 50,204 51,144

Restricted income fund 17 1,759 890

Pension reserve 17 (597) (6,310)
Total restricted funds 51,366 46,724
Unrestricted income funds 17 3,443 2,991
Total funds 54,809 49,715

The financial statements on pages 29 to 55 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 14 December
2022 and are signed on their behalf by:

Mr S R Brunswick — Chair of Trustees
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 August 2022

Notes 2021/22 2020/21
£'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 21 1,114 897
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (298) (577)
Cash flows from financing activities . 23 . 29 (80)
845 240
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2021 5,260 5,020
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022 24 6,105 5,260
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022

1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the multi academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the results by the academy trust and its subsidiary undertaking Chrysalis
Education Trading Limited on a line by line basis.

As permitted under s408 of the Companies Act 2006 the academy trust has not presented its own SoFA. The
academy trust's surplus for the year was £5,094k (2021 : £985k deficit).

1.3 Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
.uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a year of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the multi academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the multi academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.4 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the multi academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. '

. Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the year is shown in the relevant funds
on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related
conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the.financial statements fbr the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Income (continued)

* Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)

. Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the multi academy trust has provided the goods or services.

. Donated goods, facilities and services . ]

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in 'Stocks' and
‘iIncome from Other Trading Activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from Other Trading Activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from Other Trading
Activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are
not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from Other Trading Activities'.

i Donated fixed assets
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure
this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as
income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category
and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the multi academy trust's accounting
policies.

1.5 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made
up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.
Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute
to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned
between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

. Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the multi academy trust to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

. Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the multi academy trust’s educational operations, including support costs
and costs relating to the governance of the multi academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

1.6 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.
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Chrysalis Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of
the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at
rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life as follows: '

Freehold buildings - 2 to 6% straight line
Plant and machinery - 20% straight line
Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer hardware - 33.33% straight line
Motor vehicles - 33.33% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

v

1.7 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.

1.8 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.9 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide.

1.10 Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined by FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows :

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.10 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments and are measured at
amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.11 Leased assets A

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
1.12 Investments

The academy trust's shareholdings in the wholly owned subsidiary Chrysalis Education Trading Limited is
included at the cost of share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily available market value
and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

1.13 Stock
The stock of goods held is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

1.14 Taxation . ) ‘ X
The multi academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the multi academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

1.15 Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the multi academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(‘'TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.15 Pension benefits (continued)

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the multi
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.
The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair-value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the year by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the multi academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency or Department for Education.

1.17 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The multi academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuiting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial vaiuation performed at 31 March 2019 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.

1.18 Agency arrangements

The multi academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received
from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities
as the trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust does not use any of the
allocation towards its own administration costs. The funds received and paid and any balances held are
disclosed in note 29.
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

2. General annual grant (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the multi academy trust was subject to limits at 31 August
2022 on the amount of GAG that could be carried forward from one year to the next. An amount equal to 12% of GAG
could be carried forward, of which up to 2% could be used for general recurrent purposes, with any balance being
available for premises/capital purposes.

The multi academy trust has not exceeded these limits during the year ended 31 August 2022.

3. Donations and capital grants
' Restricted  Restricted

Unrestricted general fixed asset 2021/22 2020/21
funds fund funds Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 - £'000 £°000

Capital grants - - 376 376 137
Donated fixed assets - - - - 28
Other donations 352 - - 352 282

352 - 376 728 447
2021 total 282 - 165 447

4. Funding for the multi academy trust’s educational operations

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted general fixed asset 2021/22 2020/21
funds fund funds Total Total
. £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) ' - 14,189 ° - 14,189 13,234
Other DfE Group grants
Pupil premium - 404 - 404 469
Supplementary grant - 158 - 158 -
UIFSM - 121 - 121 146
Teachers pension grant - 81 - 81 528
Teachers pay grant - 29 - 29 187
Others - 80 - 80 51
- 15,062 - 15,062 14,615
Other government grants '
Local authority grants - 680 - 680 823
Other government funding - 255 - 255 262
- 935 - 935 1,085
Other income from the academy
trust's educational operations - 481 - 481 315
Covid-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Recovery/Catch-up premium - 50 - 50 175
Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding - 23 - 23 124
- 1,489 - 1,489 1,699
- 16,551 - 16,551 16,314
2021 total - 16,314 - 16,314
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

5. Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income
Chrysalis Education Trading Limited

2021 total

6. Investment income

Short term deposits

2021 total

7. Expenditure

4 1

Expenditure on raising funds

Academy's educational
operations

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

2021 total

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes :

Operating leases
Depreciation
Fees payable to auditor
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Unrestricted Restricted 2021/22 2020/21
funds funds Total Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000

366 - 366 180
438 - 438 326

27 - 27 115
831 - 831 621
621 - 621

Unrestricted Restricted 2021/22 2020/21
funds funds Total Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000

4 - 4 1
1 - 1
Staff Non pay expenditure 2021/22 2020/21
costs Premises Other Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- - . 693 693 458
11,027 858 668 12,553 12,908
2,980 1,453 797 5,230 5,002
14,007 2,311 2,158 18,476 18,368
14,198 2,094 2,076 18,368
2021/22 2020/21
£000 £'000
- plant and machinery 54 36
1,650 1,592
- audit 16 15
- other services 7 6

-



Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statcments for the ycar ended 31 August 2022 (continued) -

8. Charitable activities

Educational operations
Direct costs
Support costs |

2021 total

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs

Depreciation

Recruitment and support

Premises and equipment maintenance

Cleaning

Rent and rates

Insurances

Security and transport

Bank interest and charges .
- Other support costs

Governance costs

Total support costs

2021 total

9. Staff

a) Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise :
Redundancy payments
Severance payments

Restricted Other
Unrestricted pension restricted 2021/22 2020/21
funds fund funds Total Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
11 - 12,542 12,553 12,908
172 635 4,423 5,230 5,002
183 635 16,965 17,783 17,910
281 350 17,279 17,910
Restricted Other
Unrestricted pension restricted 2021/22 2020/21
funds fund funds Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
35 635 2,310 2,980 2,739
- - 792 792 833
- - 17 17 45
- - 268 268 93
- - 60 60 60
1 - 77 78 102
- - 60 60 48
- - 12 12 14
-, - , 4 4 .4
136 - 792 928 1,034
- - 31 31 30
172 635 4,423 5,230 5,002
281 350 4,371 5,002
2021/22 2020/21
£'000 £'000
9,606 10,044
1,054 1,066
2,991 2,787
13,651 13,897
332 271
24 30
14,007 14,198
24 -
- 30
24 30
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Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
9. Staff (continued)

b) Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

The academy trust paid no severance payments in

the year. The previous year is disclosed in the

following bands: 2021/22 2020/21

Number Number
£25,001 - £50,000 - 1

c) Special staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £nil (2021 : £30,000).

d) Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during

the year was as follows: 2021/22 2020/21
Number Number
Teachers 148 161
Administration and support 136 144
Management 3 3
287 308

Bl N ¥

e) Higher paid staff

2021/22 2020/21
Number Number
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension
costs) exceeded £60,000 was :

£60,001 - £70,000 1
£70,001 - £80,000

£80,001 - £90,000

£90,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £110,000

- = N D
=N

f) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the multi academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the multi
academy trust was £364,611 (2021 : £371,719)
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10. Central services

11.

No central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the current or previous year.-

Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the multi
academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows :
N Hyde-Boughey (Executive Headteacher and trustee)

Remuneration £105,000 - £110,000 (2021 : £100,000 - £105,000)
Employer's pension contributions paid £25,000 - £30,000 (2021 : £20,000 - £25,000)

There were no travel and subsistence expenses paid to any trustee during current or previous year. Other related
party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 28.

12. Trustees’ and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees
and officers from claims arising from negllgent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business.

Claremont High School has cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this insurance is included in the
total insurance cost.

Sudbury Primary School has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quant|fy the trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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13. Tangible fixed assets

14.

Group and Academy

Freehold Plant Furniture

land and and and Computer Motor
buildings machinery  equipment hardware vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2021 55,063 " 2,653 2,180 712 32 60,640
Additions 433 - - 245 - 678
At 31 August 2022 55,496 2,653 2,180 957 32 61,318
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 7,949 642 935 503 32 10,061
Charge for the year 1,230 196 74 150 - 1,650
At 31 August 2022 9,179 838 1,009 653 32 11,711
Net book values
At 31 August 2022 46,317 1,815 1,171 304 - 49,607
At 31 August 2021 47,114 2,011 1,245 209 - 50,579

Investments

On 3 August 2015 the academy trust's subsidiary Chrysalis Education School Trading Limited was incorporated
and commenced trading. The principal activity of the subsidiary is to generate income through the running of an
Assessment Centre on behalf of the Local Authority of Brent. The Assessment Centre places out of school pupils
in schools across the Brent Borough.

The academy trust owns the entire share capital of Chrysalis Education Trading Limited, a company registered in
England and Wales with the same registered office.

The following is a summary of the financial statements of Chrysalis Education Trading Limited (Company
Number: 09713800), for the year ended 31 August 2022, which have been included in the consolidated financial
statements :

2021/22 2020/21

£'000 £'000
Turnover 27 112
Cost of sales (1) (6)
Gross profit 26 106

Administration expenses - -

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 26 106
Distribution (Gift aid payable to Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust) (134) (96)
(108) 10
Retained profit at 1 September 2021 107 97
Retained profit at 31 August 2022 (1) 107
Current assets @) 108
Current liabilities - (1)
Net assets (1) 107
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15. Debtors

Debtors from operations

VAT recoverable

Prepayments and accrued income
Other debtors

16. Creditors

(a) Amounts falling due within one year :

Creditors from operations

Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income
Loans

Other creditors

o i

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2021
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income at 31 August 2022

Group Academy
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000
24 5 25 6
113 160 113 160
838 643 838 614
- 49 - 20
975 857 976 800
Group Academy
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
336 392 336 392
248 260 248 260
393 583 393 582
17 9 17 9
248 301 248 301
1,242 1,545 1,242 1,544
123 132 123 132
103 123 103 123
(123) (132) (123) (132)
103 123 103 123

At the balance sheet date the multi academy trust was holding funds received in advance for UIFSM, music

tuition fees and educational trips.

(b) Amounts falling due after more than one year :

Loans

Group
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

41 20

Academy
2022 2021
£'000 £'000

41 20

Loans consist of three Salix loans from the ESFA that total £39,762 (2021 : £20,164) and are repayable in
half yearly instalments. None of these loans have any interest to pay. The amount due within one year is
£15,549 (2021 : £8,518) and is shown in note 16(a). There are no amounts repayable over five years.
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17. Funds
Group
Balance at ) Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditure transfers 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds ’
General Annual Grant (GAG) 888 14,189 (12,986) (334) 1,758
Pupil premium - 404 (404) - -
Recovery premium - 50 (50) - -
Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding - 23 (23) - -
Other income - 1,885 (1,885) - -
’ 889 16,551 (15,348) (334) 1,758 -

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 45,479 - (1,059) - 44 420
DfE Group capital grants 5,006 376 (522) - 4,860
Capital expenditure from unrestricted
funds 631 - (67) 334 898
Donations 28 - (2) - 26

51,144 376 (1,650) 334 50,204
Pension reserve (5,310) - (635) 5,348 (597)
Total restricted funds 46,723 16,927 (17,633) 5,348 51,365
Unrestricted funds ? A k
Other income 3,099 1,187 (843) - 3,443
Total unrestricted funds 3,099 1,187 (843) - 3,443
Total group funds 49,822 18,114 (18,476) 5,348 54,808

The academy trust is subject to GAG carried forward limits as described in note 2.
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds
These comprise all restricted funds other than restricted fixed asset funds and include grants from The Education
and Skills Funding Agency and the London Borough of Brent.

Unrestricted funds
These comprise resources that may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the multi academy
trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds
These comprise resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the ESFA and the
London Borough of Brent where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.
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17. Funds (continued)

- Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows :

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds '
General Annual Grant (GAG) _ 720 13,233 (13,064) - 889
Pupil premium - 469 (469) - -
Covid catch-up premium - 175 (175) - -
Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding - 124 (124) - -
Other income - 2,313 (2,313) - -
720 16,314 (16,145) - 889
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 46,538 - (1,059) - 45,479
DfE Group capital grants 5,373 137 (504) - 5,006
Capital expenditure from unrestricted '
funds - - (29) 660 631
Donations - 28 - - 28
51,911 165 (1,592) 660 51,144
Pension reserve (4,007) - (350) (953) (5,310)
Total restricted funds : 48,624 16,479 (18,087) 1 (293) 46,723
Unrestricted funds
Other income ) 3,136 904 (281) (660) 3,099
Total unrestricted funds 3,136 904 (281) (660) 3,099
Total group funds 51,760 17,383 (18,368) (953) 49,822

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows :

2021/22 2020/21
Total Total
£'000 £'000
Claremont High School 4,570 3,985
Sudbury Primary School 457 (104)
Chrysalis Education Trading Limited (1) 107
Central Trust 175 -
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 5,201 3,988
Restricted fixed asset fund 50,204 51,144
Pension reserve (597) (5,310)

Total funds 54,808 49,822
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17. Funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows :

Teaching & Other
educational Other costs
" support support  Educational (excluding 2021/22
staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation) Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Claremont High School 7,621 2154 140 1,865 11,780
Sudbury Primary School 3,406 826 82 597 4,911
Chrysalis Education Trading Limited - - - 135 135
Total group 11,027 2,980 222 2,597 16,826
2021 total 11,459 2,739 236 2,342 16,776
Academy
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure transfers 2022
_£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Restricted general funds . ' . .
General Annual Grant (GAG) 890 14,189 (12,986) (334) 1,759
Pupil premium - 404 (404) - -
Recovery premium - 50 (50) - -
Other grants - 1,908 (1,908) - -
890 16,551 (15,348) (334) 1,759
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 45,479 - (1,059) - 44,420
DfE Group capital grants 5,006 376 (522) - 4,860
Capital expenditure from unrestricted p
funds 631 - (67) 334 898
Donations 28 - (2) - 26
51,144 376 (1,650) 334 50,204
Pension reserve (5,310) - (635) 5,348 (597)
Total restricted funds 46,724 16,927 (17,633) 5,348 51,366
Unrestricted funds
Other income 2,991 1,160 (708) ~ 3,443
Total unrestricted funds 2,991 1,160 (708) - 3,443
Total academy funds 49,715 18,087 (18,341) 5,348 54,809
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17. Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows :

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 ~ £000 £'000
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 720 13,234 (13,064) - 890
Pupil premium - 469 (469) - -
Covid catch-up premium - 175 (175) - -
Other grants’ ' - 2,437 (2,437) L - -
720 16,315 (16,145) - 890
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 46,538 - (1,059) - 45,479
DfE Group capital grants 5,373 137 (504) - 5,006
Capital expenditure from unrestricted -
funds - - (29) 660 631
Donations - 28 - - 28
51,911 165 (1,592) 660 51,144
Pension reserve (4,007) - (350) (953) (5,310)
Total restricted funds 48,624 16,480 (18,087) (293) 46,724
Unrestricted funds
Other income 3,038 792 (179) (660) 2,991
Total unrestricted funds 3,038 792 (179) (660) 2,991
Total academy funds 51,662 17,272 (18,266) (953) 49,715
18. Analysis of net assets between funds
Group
Fund balances at 31
August 2022 are Restricted Restricted  Restricted
represented by: Unrestricted  pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 49,607 49,607
Current assets 3,443 - 2,986 652 7,081
Current liabilities - - (1,187) (55) (1,242)
3,443 - 1,799 50,204 55,446
Creditors due after one year - - (41) 41)
Pension scheme liability - (597) - - (597)
Total net assets 3,443 (597) 1,758 50,204 54,808
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18. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Group

Comparative information

in respect of the Restricted Restricted  Restricted
preceding period is as Unrestricted  pension general fixed asset Total
follows : funds funds funds funds funds
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 50,579 50,579
Current assets 3,099 - 2,426 593 6,118
Current liabilities - - (1,537) . (8) (1,545)
3,099 - 889 51,164 55,152
Creditors due after one year - - - (20) (20)
Pension scheme liability - (5,310) - - (5,310)
Total net assets 3,099 (5,310) 889 51,144 49,822
Academy
Fund balances at 31
August 2022 are Restricted Restricted  Restricted
represented by: Unrestricted  pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 49,607 49,607
Current assets 3,443 - 2,987 652 7,082
Current liabilities - - (1,187) (55) (1,242)
' 3,443 - 1,800 50,204 55,447
Creditors due after one year - - 41) (41)
Pension scheme liability - (597) - - (597)
Total net assets 3,443 (597) 1,759 50,204 54,809
Comparative information
in respect of the Restricted Restricted Restricted
preceding period is as Unrestricted  pension general fixed asset Total
follows : funds funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets - - - 50,579 50,579
Current assets 2,991 - 2,426 593 6,010
Current liabilities - - (1,536) (8) (1,544)
2,991 - 890 51,164 55,045
Creditors due after one year - - - (20) (20)
Pension scheme liability - (5,310) - - (5,310)
Total net assets 2,991 (5,310) 890 51,144 49,715
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19. Capital commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

20. Commitments under operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the multi academy
trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years

21. Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow
from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for reporting year (as per the SoFA)
Adjusted for :
Depreciation (note 13)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Donated fixed assets
Interest receivable (note 6)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 27)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 27)
Increase in debtors
(Decrease) / increase in creditors

Y i

Net cash provided by operating activities

22. Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities
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2022 2021
£000 £'000
106 -
Other
Total Total
2022 . 2021
£'000 £000
21 54
21 42
42 96
2021/22 2020/21
Total Total
£000 £'000
(362) (985)
1,650 1,592
(376) (137)
- (28)
(4) (1)
542 280
93 70
(118) (406)
(311) 512
1,114 897
2021/22 2020/21
Total Total
£000 - £'000
4 1
(678) (715)
376 137
(298) (577)
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23.

24,

25.

26.

Cash flows from financing activities
2021/22 2020/21
Total Total
£'000 £'000
Repayment of borrowing _ (5) (80)
New borrowings 34 -
Net cash used in / (provided by) financing activities 29 (80)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
At . At
31 August 31 August
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 6,105 5,260
6,105 5,260
Analysis of changes in net debt
At Other At
31 August Cash non-cash 31 August
2021 flows changes 2022
£ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand : 5,260 * 845 - »> 6,105
Loans falling due within one year (9) 8) - - (17)
Loans falling due after more than one year (20) (21) - (41)
5,231 816 - 6,047

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.

27. Pension and similar obligations

The multi academy trust’'s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Brent Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer
defined-benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019.

Contributions amounting to £248,860 (2021 : £280,154) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 and are
included within creditors.
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27. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every four years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are :

* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge)

* total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit
of £22,000 million

* the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate
is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,555,108 (2021 : £1,599,826).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £945,000 (2021 : £964,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £805,000 (2021 : £820,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £140,000
(2021 : £144,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are awaiting confirmation from the actuary for
employers and between 5.5% and 8.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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27. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

- Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

The trustees have agreed that the trust will make additional contributions in addition to normal funding levels over

the next 29 years.

Principal actuarial assumptions At 31 At 31
August 2022 August 2021
Rate of increase in salaries 3.45% 3.20%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 3.15% 2.90%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.25% 1.65%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 3.15% 2.90%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 75.00% 75.00%
Sensitivity analysis At 31 At 31
August 2022 August 2021
£'000s £°000s
Discount rate +0.1% (175) (137)
Discount rate -0.1% 175 137
Mortality assumption 1 year increase 301 251
Mortality assumption 1 year decrease (301) (251)
CPl rate +0.1% 168 129
CPl rate -0.1% (168) (129)
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for 3
future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life At 31 At 31
expectations on retirement age 65 are: August 2022 August 2021
Retiring today
Males 221 223
Females 245 247
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.2 23.5
Females 26.0 26.2
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was : 31 August 31 August
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Equities 5,543 5,138
Bonds 762 770
Property 485 257
Cash and other liquid assets 139 257
Total market value of assets 6,929 6,422

The actual negative return on scheme assets was 3.0% (2021 : positive 13.7%).

Page 53




Chrysalis Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

27. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Past service cost

thal amount recognised in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

were as follows :

At 1 September 2021

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial gains/(losses) - financial assumptions

Actuarial gains/(losses) - demographic assumptions

Actuarial ggins/(losses) - experience gains/losses
Benefits paid '

At 31 August 2022

Changes in the fair value of academy’s share of scheme assets

were as follows :

At 1 September 2021

Interest income

Expected return

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid net of transfers in

At 31 August 2022

Net pension scheme liability

Page 54

2021/22 2020/21
£'000 £'000
1,344 1,100
(111) (87)
204 157
3 -
1,440 1,170
2021/22 2020/21
£°000 £'000
11,732 8,662
1,344 1,100
3 -
204 157
140 144
(5,657) 1,731
(26) 151
21 (131)
(235) (82)
7,526 11,732
2021/22 2020/21
£'000 £'000
6,422 4,655 .
111 87
(314) 798
805 820
140 144
(235) (82)
6,929 6,422
(597) (5,310)
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28.

29.

30.

" Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certain trustees’' remuneration already
disclosed in note 11.

Agency arrangements
The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting period

ending 31 August 2022 the trust received £13,198 (2021 : £22,076) and disbursed £13,558 (2021 : £26,410) from
the fund. There are no undistributed funds repayable to ESFA at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liabilities
Following the recent decision in the Harpur Trust vs Brazel case the trust is considering the potential liability in

respect of this. At this time it is not possible to quantify any liability, if any, and no provision has been made in
these accounts.
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